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calony of Loestn Corollina had little

interest in its territory west of the Smokies, however,
which disinterest prompted settlers in the area to

form thelr own government. In 1724 the western terri-
Ttory organized itself into the new State of Franklin.
Nortn Carolina had planned to cede the district to the
newly independent United States anyway, but about the
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time the State of Franklin was orgzanized the State of
”
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Horth Carolina chuonged its minad.

In order to appease the western settlers, Horth
Carolina established the Washington District. Washing-
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- £ L, 2. I e Ty - hind
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lin government adopted a constitution any way,vanﬂ in-

Form=d North Carolina that Franklin was o Yfrece and inde~
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be devided in 1790, but the sitets of rranklin had sil-
ently faded away. The 1790 cession created the Tenmnssses
Territory, and Tennesses achiaved statvzhesd in 1796.&
Tnough the State of Franklin, the Washington Dig-

trict, and the Tennessee Territory had all included
what 1s now Grundj County, it was net until 1794 that
the Nic?ajaol Exrpe d1t1on opened the region up for set-
tlement. The Expedition, indian ilgntors on thelr way

to Chattancogza, vassed along a trail known as the Chicka-

nauga Tracse. This
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present State Tighway 5




239~

near Tracy City.5 Except for scattered hunters and itraders,
these were probably the first white men in Grundy County.
Thelr defeat of the Chickamaugas made the area safe for
settlement.

When Warren County was erected in 1807, mos%t of what
is now Grundy County was included witnin its boundaries.6
fuzh of Warren County's mountain land was bought up by
William Dugan in 1824, the same year he arrived from
North Carolina.7 At the time Dugan bought thz mountain
land there was nothing of much value on it; no settlement:
no known riches. llost people preferred to settle in the
valley where there wvere other people, and no-one paid
much attention to the mountain until 1833.

Beercheba Forter Cain, wife of John Cain from leliimm-
ville, wandered up the mountain one day while her

-

nusband
was discussing business with William Dugan at the foot of
the mountalin. BDeersheba and her gervarhs digcoverad g
spring winich she was gulck To funcy nhad therapauiic prop-
erties. She returned again and again, bringing friends
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William Dugan authorized a turnpike road to bHe bullt
across ‘the mountain., The road was to originzte at his
place near the foot of the meountzin., From there, 1t wus
to pass over the mountain by way of "Beersheba's dprings,”
and thence on, descending the mountain at Ross's Landinq.g

Beersheba Springs must have ascquired come sopulation
by this time and was becoming & popular resort, I
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by the Tennessee General As sembly.ll At some time prior
to this, William Dugan had deeded some of his mountain
land to several bMcMinnville men. John Cain received a
parcel along with Alfred Paine, Samuel Edmondson, George
R. Smartt, and William (Buck) White. The land was deeded
with the stipulation that the spring discovered by Frs.
Cain would be promoted for "all who wish to enjoy®™ its
waters. The plan of the Beersheba Springs Company in-
volved only the operation of a tavern. '

1840~ Felix Grundy died. Though he may never have set
foot within the boundaries of the county which bears his
name, he 1is definitely a part of its history. Felix
Grundy wiag a lawyer, judge, end U.S. Senator from 18529
to 1838. At one time he served as Attorney General of
the United States. At his death, six of his sons-in-law
inherited 100,000 acres of mountain 1?§da Two of these
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were ocohn . Bags and Jacob Melavonis.

1844 - Crundy County was created by an act of the Tennes-
sce Legislature. The new county combined sections of
Coffee and Warren Countiezs. Tater, z small sactlon of

Marion County would be added. William Dugan and Adrian
Northcecutt - from the YWarren County section -, and John f},'
Burrows and Alfred Broley -~ from the Coffee County sec-
tion -, were appointed by the legislature to serve as
comrissioners to organize the new county.

in July, the first election was held. (See Appendiz A.)
In Avgust, the Grundy County Quarterly Court met for

. (Sce Appendix B.) The Court met at Beer-
sheba Springs for its first sessicen. Beginning with the
cond sesslon, the court was held at the home of Je

ogten, where it continued to meet for the next four
years.j‘br The Wootan place was located about three miles
nurth of Altamont.



1850-

1851~

In October the County seat was establlish
The met at the David Bitchie home
until a new courthouse could be bullt.

ed at Alts-~

mont. County Court
5The Ritchie ros-
idence is a large bullding constructed of roughly hewn
logs At the time of this writing it sits behind the

Fanny loffet manor home, awalting restoration.

Court was held
nouse in Altamont.

for the first time in the new court-
The new courthouse was a frame buil-

ding constructed of Richard Bradford was
. 17
cf the County Court. /

yellow pline.
serving as chalrman

John Mof

arkad fyom Canada on an extensive tour

fat, an international tempsrence movement

of the
It may nave bzen on this tour
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the mountain.

Jonn Armfield came to Beershebs Spris He, hafore
he cana, had bHzen ono the oot suncesafel glove =mrad-

)
ers in the count After getting cut of the

ness in 18724, he had wandered around the south wiih
nothing to do ercept sperdhis money. When v, Armfield
found Beersheba Springs, he bought the hotel and 1500
acres of land from R. H. Robards of iemphils, and John i,
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1857~

An important dbranch of the Nachville and Chattanocoga
Railroad was completed which would help provide Nashville
with a regular and cheap supply of cosl. The brarnch line
ran up the mountain from Cowan, through Sewanee, z2nd into

.

the coal nmines of the Sewanee ilining Company near Tracy

L Colonel A. S. Colyar and eastern indusitrialicst
F in getting the branch

camuel F. Tracy had been successiul
.

line built s6 that they could easily transport the "excel-
lent” coal from the soon-to-be-famous sewanee seam‘21

Ben Cagle moved to Beersheba Springs from the Irving
College cemmunity at the foot of the mountain in order
to take the foreman's job on John Armfield's staff. Cagle

. -

vould become a popular personali ty in Beersheba Springs,
and stay witn his beloved boss until

the day ne died. He
22
<

lies buried to Armfield.
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The first "stone coal” in the south was mined in
Tracy City. At first, there was abgolutsly no market
for the fuel, because people were slow to bulieve that
a "gtone” would burn. In order to induce the operavors

of railrusd v
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hone-owners to buy the coal
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was offering to reimburse customers Tor the expense
difdn

of coal grates 1f the coal didn't work, and to puy the
D
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cogt of conversicn back to wood or charceal.

Samuel . Tracy offered 5,022 reres of hia lan? in
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field had bullt in Beersheba Springo. Armfield pledged

‘the University $25.000 a year for the rest of his life.

By this year, the hotel at Bzersheba had been conm-
pleted and several of the cottages were occupied. A
site was selected for an Episcopal Church which was never
built.24

An interesting advertisement in the Nashville Barnner
stated the attractions offered at the Beersheba Springs
resort: a new hotel, a table with all the delicackes of
the season, a good bowlong alley, and a fine ball-room
supplied with music., There was no saloon, gambling was
prohibited, and no gambler need apply for rooms. The rate
wag 22.00 a day or 335.00 a month with no charge for light
or fire. It was recommended that guests take the train
to lcilinnville where they would find a stagecoach for.
Beersheba. 25 The stage fare from MHclilnnvglle was $2.00,
with each passenger being allowed 60 pounds of bdvgage.26

. A, Price ran the stage to Beersheba. He also was
respongsible for the livery at Beersheba. 1In exchange for
$1.00, his agreement to keep the buggies and saddle horses
for a rate not more than that charged at Hashville, and
hiz responslibility of putting the stoge on the road, he

27

vas leased lot /5 at Beersheba Spricgs.

By this year all twenty of the Armfield cottages had
been completed, and no two of them were alike. The hotel
was at its best with as many as 400 guests being enter-
tained at one time. The chef at the hotel and all the
servanis were Irench, and a French band from New Orleans

played music for dancing. It was the custom for the banad
to play for the stagecoach coming up the mountaln, bringing
nail and passengers. When the horses stopped to rest, the

. . 3
coacrman gounded his horn one time for each pagsenger 2



% 1859~ The Beersheba Springs Company was granted a charter

; by the Tennessee General Ascembly with the following men

i named as incorporators: John . Bassg, Joseph H. Williams,

0 C. G. Dahlgren, Oliver J. Morgan, klnor Kenner, Sterling
Cockrill, Alexander Barrow, A. Hamilton Folk, Josiah Gar-

rett, Benjamin Johnson, John Waters, Charl

eg W, Thillips,
Lucius J. Polk, and John Scarborougn who bzcazme the treas-

29 )

urer,
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¢ 1860- The census showed that Joan Armfield had more sl
8 . . . e 30
than anyone else in the county. iHe owned 32 3

1861~ The Civil War was getting started. Grundy County

Lk suoe

had both Federal and Confedarate sympathisers &

the county waaz probably of the Confederate persuasion,

but Beersheba Springs was known as a Union camp, with the
. . 1
Confederates there being not so numerous.3
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Another Zishop of the Spigcopal Cnurch, Leond
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Polk, was preparing hinself for the duties of a Confed-
erate General. ©On July & he replaced Jideon J. Pillow

ag the leader of Tennsssea's Armies.
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1862~ On iay 29 Cavpta

i
lary Company left Chattanooga for iiinchester to joln Col-

onel Starnecs' ULth Tennassee Cavalry, and made connoeot
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1863-

1864~

Beersheba Iprings by this tine had assumed fn2 role
of a refuge where people of culture could escape the ten-
sions of the war. Governor Harrls, Judge Bromfleld Ridley
and other luminaries found repose there.

Sewing, xnitting, weaving and cooking went on in the
Armfield Cottage for the benefit of lLee's soldiers and
the sick in the hospitals. The cottage was turned into a

or all who would come. Captaln Broemfield Ridley
wrote in his diary that he would sometimes watch the pas-

sing of lines of blue and gray uniforms along the valley

}-i0

road, or cross

1aly

Wnen Forrest passed through Becrsheba on his way
back from his raid on Murfreesboro, irs. Armfield had
bags of coffee

as he passed.y'r

ng the mountain by way of Beersheba.
A
opened and gava a package Lo each soldier

Companies "D", "L, and "F" were organized on Dec-
ember 9 in Tracy City and Nashville.35

Captain Stephen r., Tipton's company, consisting of

oneg officer and 73 men, unarmed except for half o dozen

o

squirrel riiles and not mounted, was part of the garrison

"

at Tracy City when it was attacked by Bledsoce. Just
prior to the attack, Tipton wasz surprised at his home in
Altamont, where he was shot down when he came to his
door to answer a hail. Tipton was shown on a muster
roll dated Teoruary 24 at Nasnville. The roll showed
Tipton to Te & 2nd Lieutenant in James H. Shannon'®s
Company “Z", 1lst Regiment, Independent Vidette Cavalry.
Thic ocutfit consisted of 91 officers and enlisted men,
nearl; all ¢f whom had eﬁlisted at Altamont, and had
been nmustered at Tracy Cilty in Decswmbaor of 1863u1“

General Loonidasz Tolk wes ¥illed at Fine ountalin,
Alavana. Hls death was a blow to Confederate morale.
Colonel Villiam B. Stokes reported numerous engage-

ments around Beersheba during Februvary and march.37
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1865~

1867~

1869~

1870~

Things on the mountain seemed to have hit rock-
bottom. lDiost of the patrons of the resort in Beersheba
Springs were either dead or bankrupt. Armfield was
forced to possess the cottages he had built for his
now ponnlle°“ friends. He sold out nls Beersheba hol-
dings to Jonn M. Bass, including the hotel.38

Captain E. H. Plumacher was gent by the Department
of Emmigration of Switzerland to the United States to
look for a cultable place for Swiss colonization. Fres-~
ident Andrew Jonhnson asked him to look al Tennsssee bte-

.

fore he made up his mind.Jg

John Armfield was the only citizen in Grundy Jounty
to pay a luxury tax. He reported cwnership of one gold
watch. Before the war, taxes were pal on 17 gold watches,

-0

18 carriages, and 12 pieces of Jewelry.

Captain Plumzcher choge the final location for his
L1
colony of Swiss immigrants, Peter Stauh, o Swigs Busi-

nessman 1iving in Xnoxville, paid'ﬁ,@ﬂ to 2.90 per o
for the land in tracits as larze am 5,000 acres &rd plols
as small as 100 acreg. £
southeagst of Altamont.

The Tirgt 100 Swizs arrived in Teimezsee. They Formed
a colony which they nzmed “GrUtli " (Qruetli), after the

e

Canton in Switzerland from which they had come. They

found one log cabin a.:d thousands of trecs on the u
cleared land. They know the winter would be hard, and

hard 1t wag.
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Station (later, lMonteagle), would coon siart growing around
him. Moffat was retiring from hig travels as a leader of
the temperance movement alter a severe financizl. loss in
Ohlo.b5

The Tennessee Coal, Iron, and Rallrcad made an agree-
ment with the State of Tennessee for the lease of 100 State
prisoners to be used in the coal mines arcound Tracy City.
The agreement called for the company %o pay $1.00 per man
per day to the Siate and to provide facilitlies for keep-
ing the prisoners. The State, in return, would furnish
the convicts with Tood and c'otnvnaghﬁ

John Armfield died and was buried near his home in
Beersheba Springs>’7

Jonn lMoffat donated 50 ucres of land near his home
for the establishment of Failrmount Female College. The
college was organized and gterted receiving students

15
soon thereafter. ~ lioffat was deveted to the cause of
education, and muct have thought there were too Tew

higher education institutions for women. At the time,
the University of the South was an all-male institution.
120 open ovens which would convert cozl into coke
were constructed in the vicinity of Tracy City. ‘The
Tennesses Coal and Railroad Company had already dis-
covered that much of *the coal they had been throwing
away was suitable for the purpose of making iron. Mr.
3. E., Jones, who was in charge of the machine shops in
Tracy City, had told Colonel Colyar, President of the
company, and A, Ii, Shook, who wags handling things, that
he could conctruct an oven which would convert the coal

for about {3,000, The type ovens used 1n the iron towns



1876~

1882~

of the north would have cdst’the company between $125,000

and $200,000; a sum which they could not afford to pay.
Mz, Jones' crude furnace was fired up and very shortly
fell to the ground. Before it fell, though, some iron
had been made- the first coke-~iron in the south. The

120 ovens constructed in 1873 were of the type lir. Jones
had improvised.5o

The State of Tennessee chartered "The Lioffat Normal
and Collegiate Institute.” This school was one of John
Moffat's pet freéams, and was intended to be a place where
families of limited means could send their children to
receive a higher education. Woffat donated one building
and some land but, probably due to a lack of donated cap-
ital, the school never got off the ground,sl
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The Sunday School Assembly of the South had been
looking for a site for a “sguthern Chatauqua,” a copy
of the fanmous 5

2

) s e 52
hatauqua Assenbly in New York State.
After looking at sites in Tullahoma, TLookout Mountain,
King's Mountain, M. C., and Atlanta, the group chose

to establish its Sunday School Assembly Grounds in Mont-

- eagle. John Moffat's contribution of the land for the

Assembly, and his eloquent and persuasive speech to the
Assembly Association, contributed greatly to their de-
cision. The Assembly cstill funcitions as 2 quasi-rel
resort on the original site.53
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The original pine courthouse in Altamont was deg-
troyed by fire.Su

my m

The Tennessee Coszsl, Iron, and Rallrozad Company had
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120 more of illr. Jones dseniva' coke ovens constructed
e
L




1884-

1886-

1890-

1890~

1891~

- 1892-

A five year lease agrrement between the Tennessee
Iron, Coal, and Railroad Company and the 3tate of Tennessee
for the use of State prisoners was signed. The Company
agreed to pay the State $101,000 per year for the use of
convicts to work in the coal mines. This contract was

56

renewed a few times, and finally expired in 1895.
John Moffat died on Christmas Day.57

The English language became the only language taught
in the Swiss school at Gruetli. The students in the school
had been used to using either English or G'rermam..,f’8

The practice of leasing convictz to the coal mine
operators in Tracy City and to others netted the State
$771,400,59 |

The regular coal miners were objecting vigorously to
the convicts taking their Jjobs away. The company could
work convicts much more cheaply than they could pay nor-
mal wages, and had no intention of letting the convicts
go back to prison. R

The miners who did work were paid in “scrip,” which
had to be spent in the company store, or discounted any-
where else. They were forced to sign contracts pledging
allegiance to the officials of the company and promising

not to strike.éo

In July, outbreaks occurred at the Tracy City nmines.
Governor Buchanan vascillated, but oifered rewards for tne
apprehension and convictition ¢f the leaders of the uprising.
Some miners were arrested, but few con:victed.é1 Jecause
of the uprising, however, the convict laborers were temnpor-

arily removed.62
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1895-
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Martin Marugg took over the defunct "Tracy City News,"

and started “Mrs. Grundy." His weekly newspaper was pubd-

lisned under that name until sometime around 1939*3and is
remembered as the most popular newspaper ever sold in
Grundy County.

The town of TracyVCity discussed and “*cussed” the
gquestion of incorporation.

Wages of coal miners were cut 20 per cent. Abtout
200 citizens, knowing that there would probably be a
strike, met to consider what they should do when it came.
The convict miners mutinied in August, killing a deputy

6L
warden and one of themselves.

About 50 convict miners were removed from Tracy

City in September, in the face of an impending conflag-

S

ration. By November, things had cooled down some, and

75 convicts were brought in to take the place of the 50.65

In December the contract between the State and the mine

operators ran out, and the convict miners were removed
66

permanently.

Martin Marugg estavlished the Dixie Telepnone Com-

pany, with a line running between Tracy City and Altamont.

_ ca
The last of the convict miners leave Tracy Gity.~
Pl

. s . &g
The regular miners called a strike in December., 7

2

The coal miners returned to work in January. A veg-
&

70

etable canning factory began operating in Tragy City.
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The coal miners

i T
was sebttled by Cctober. The coke ovens near Tracy City
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+to zhut down &

during the siril
The canning factory went into receiwership.
The Dixie Telephone Company extended their line to

71

Mellinnville.
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1900~ By the turn of the century the Swiss colony at Gruetli

J‘ was dissipating. The lack of opportunities in Grundy County
1 (a condition which still persists) was forcing the Swiss
toward brighter horizons. Some of them moved to Tracy City
to go into business there; others moved to Nashville or
Chattanooga and points beyond.

The resort at Beersheba Springs was in the midst of a
revival. The devastation of the southern economy atributed |
to the Civil War was replaced by a boom, and resorts such
as the one at Beersheba Springs regained-some of their old
popularity.

Altamont had a new courthouse begun in 1898, and was
(and is) a quiet, peaceful town.

_ lMonteagle thrived on the "summer-~folk” who spent their
money there. In Monteagle, as well as Beersheba Springs, |
“the local population was dependent on private wealth for

its economic well-being. Tracy City, in contrast, was in g
the total control of the Mining Company. 5

ADDITIONS- Things I Left Out . o

In 1844 the Tennessee legislature establighed a
branch peniﬁentiary at Tracy City. An agreement was
signed with the Tennessee Iron, Coal, and Railroad Com-
pany for the leasing of prisoners to work in the coal
mines.7?

Bishop James Hervey Otey died in 186°.73




APPENDIX (A)

.

In theY&uiy 6, 1844 election, the following men took S

office: _
Philip Roberts--=---- Sheriff
Reuben Webb==-—w=-~ == County Court Clerk
Abraham Jones------~ Registrar
John Burrowg-~-=---- Trustee

FPresumably, the following magistrates were z2lso elected
on this date:

Adrian Northcutt

John Fults

William Dugan

. Ambrose Killian

Robert Tate
! : Isaac Campbell
i Stephen M. Griswold
ﬂ James Lockhart

Jonn ZBurrows
Thomas Warren
Daniel Sain
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